Access Certificate in English Language Teaching (8575)

City & Guilds

Qualification handbook

www.cityandguilds.com March 2007 Version 2.0

About City & Guilds

City & Guilds is the UK's leading provider of vocational qualifications, offering over 500 awards across a wide range of industries, and progressing from entry level to the highest levels of professional achievement. With over 8500 centres in 100 countries, City & Guilds is recognised by employers worldwide for providing qualifications that offer proof of the skills they need to get the job done.

City & Guilds Group

The City & Guilds Group includes ILM (the Institute of Leadership & Management) providing management qualifications, learning materials and membership services and NPTC which offers land-based qualifications and membership services. City & Guilds also manages the Engineering Council Examinations on behalf of the Engineering Council.

Equal opportunities

City & Guilds fully supports the principle of equal opportunities and we are committed to satisfying this principle in all our activities and published material. A copy of our equal opportunities policy statement *Access to assessment and qualifications* is available on the City & Guilds website.

Copyright

The content of this document is, unless otherwise indicated, © The City and Guilds of London Institute 2007 and may not be copied, reproduced or distributed without prior written consent.

However, approved City & Guilds centres and learners studying for City & Guilds qualifications may photocopy this document free of charge and/or include a locked PDF version of it on centre intranets on the following conditions:

- centre staff may copy the material only for the purpose of teaching learners working towards a City & Guilds qualification, or for internal administration purposes
- learners may copy the material only for their own use when working towards a City & Guilds qualification
- the Standard Copying Conditions on the City & Guilds website.

Please note: National Occupational Standards are not © The City and Guilds of London Institute. Please check the conditions upon which they may be copied with the relevant Sector Skills Council.

Publications

City & Guilds publications are available on the City & Guilds website or from our Publications Sales department at the address below or by telephoning +44 (0)20 7294 2850 or faxing +44 (0)20 7294 3387.

Every effort has been made to ensure that the information contained in this publication is true and correct at the time of going to press. However, City & Guilds' products and services are subject to continuous development and improvement and the right is reserved to change products and services from time to time. City & Guilds cannot accept liability for loss or damage arising from the use of information in this publication.

City & Guilds
1 Giltspur Street
London EC1A 9DD
T +44 (0)20 7294 2800
F +44 (0)20 7294 2400

www.cityandguilds.com enquiry@cityandguilds.com

Access Certificate in English Language Teaching (8575)

City& Guilds

Qualification handbook

www.cityandguilds.com March 2007 Version 2.0

1

This page is intentionally blank

Contents

1	Introduction	5
2	Guide to getting approval	6
3	Centre guide to running ACE	8
4	Course delivery	9
5	Guide to assessment	10
6	Certification	12
7	Role of the External verifier	13
8	Syllabus: 8575-01-001/8575-01-003: Foundations of English Language Teaching	14
9	Syllabus: 8575-01-002: Supervised Teaching Practice	16
10	Criteria for marking Teaching Practice lessons	18
11	Criteria for marking portfolios	19
Appendix 1	Form S	22
Appendix 2	Suggested lesson planning sheet	23
Appendix 3	Suggested observed TP sheets	25
Appendix 4	Suggested teaching observation report	26
Appendix 5	Assignments	28
Appendix 6	Assessor standardisation form	32

This page is intentionally blank

1 Introduction

City & Guilds and the Language and Literacy Studies in Education Group, University of Manchester, UK, have worked together to provide an Access Certificate in English language teaching (ACE). This award enables candidates to gain an initial language teaching qualification in communicative language methods.

Target audience

ACE is aimed at:

- newcomers to the profession who want an initial English language teaching qualification
- existing English language teachers who need to upgrade their skills and qualifications
- teachers who want to move into English Language teaching

It consists of two programmes of learning: one theoretical and one practical.

Constituent programmes

Foundations of English Language Teaching

by paper based test (8575-01-001) OR by online test (8575-01-003)

Supervised Teaching Practice (8575-01-002)

This programme is assessed by the course tutor and External Verifier. The assessment is in two parts:

i) a portfolio of coursework produced by each candidate and

ii) assessor (course tutor) observation of teaching practice (TP)

Entry requirements

Candidates must register with an approved centre. They must have an adequate level of English to follow the course materials, and to function professionally as an English teacher; City & Guilds International ESOL Expert Level or equivalent is recommended as a minimum standard. Selection of candidates is at a centre's discretion but ACE is recommended as appropriate for graduates, or mature students qualified for university entrance. Applicants would normally be over the age of 20.

2 Guide to getting approval

Approval

If you wish to offer the Access Certificate in English Language Teaching (ACE) at your centre, you must:

- apply for and receive approval to carry out examinations (if you do not already have this for City & Guilds examinations)
- 2 apply for and receive approval to run the ACE programme
- 3 ensure that all trainers involved in observing and assessing teaching practice understand the ACE criteria by undertaking the Assessor standardisation exercise (see the Standardisation, section below)
- 4 if necessary (see "Approval visits", below) nominate a suitably qualified and experienced Visiting Verifier and receive confirmation of this appointment from City & Guilds.

Examination centre approval

In order to receive examination centre approval you must complete and submit an application for Centre Approval (form CAP in the UK, or CGI/CAP in other countries). For guidance on obtaining Centre Approval please see the 'Delivering International Qualifications – Centre Guide' available to download on the City & Guilds website.

Centres which already have approval to run City & Guilds examinations need not re-apply in order to run ACE, but they do need to apply for ACE qualifications approval using CGI/QAP. If you are not able to meet the criteria for examination centre approval you may approach an external body to act as your examination centre, eg a City & Guilds Branch Office or the local

British Council, and ask them to complete the form for examination centre approval.

Qualification approval

In order to receive approval to run the ACE programme you must complete form CGI/QAP submit a draft course outline showing how you intend to deliver the ACE training programme. To attain programme approval you must be able to satisfy the following criteria:

- 1 The main course trainer should have a recognised diploma or first degree in English language teaching or equivalent teacher training experience and at least three years recent and relevant teaching experience. Other trainers should have at least three years recent and relevant teaching experience. Copies of trainers' certificates should be included with the application.
- 2 The centre must have access to groups of ESOL students to enable candidates to observe and undertake teaching practice.
- 3 The centre must have access to a teachers' library containing, as a minimum, a collection of initial ELT methodology textbooks covering the topics listed in the Foundations of English Language Teaching syllabus which is at the back of each FELT unit booklet and a selection of ESOL reference books and coursebooks.
- 4 The centre must have access to video equipment suitable for showing the Assessor Training Video (see below).

Approval visits

Before granting approval (both examination centre approval and ACE programme approval), City & Guilds will normally arrange an approval visit, to be conducted by a City & Guilds External Verifier.

Standardisation for Internal Verifiers & assessors

In order to ensure reliability and validity in the assessment of the candidates teaching practice, all those involved in observing and evaluating candidates' performance must undergo standardisation training. Prior to starting the ACE programme, the Internal Verifier (IV) and assessors must complete the ACE assessor training manual. This involves reading the guidance notes and completing a range of standardisation activities that will familiarise the IV and assessors with the assessment criteria and how to calculate overall grades. As part of this process they are required to assess a complete lesson (supplied on video by City & Guilds) and submit their evaluation to City & Guilds (an example of the standardisation form can be found in appendix 6). In this way, City & Guilds can monitor and confirm that centres are applying common standards and suggest any necessary modifications.

External Verifier

Where possible, City & Guilds will assign an External Verifier who will be responsible for ensuring the consistency and validity of assessments on City & Guilds' behalf. Further information on the role of the External Verifier is given throughout this document and in detail in section 7.

3 Centre guide to running ACE

Support and assessment materials

Once your centre has been approved you will receive a range of support units for Foundations of English Language Teaching:

Unit 0: Learning and teaching

Unit 1: Choices in the classroom

Unit 2: Learning about the language

Unit 3: Teaching the language systems

Unit 4: Teaching receptive skills

Unit 5: Teaching productive skills (speaking)

Unit 6: Teaching productive skills (writing)

Unit 7: Learner styles and learner training

Unit 8: Planning effective learning

Unit 9: Resources available to the teacher

Unit 10: Teaching versus testing

Candidate registration

As soon as you have decided to run ACE you need to complete a Candidate Registration Form (FORM S, see Appendix 1 On receipt of the Registration Form S, City & Guilds will send you a copy of the registration form containing the candidates' enrolment numbers (enr).

8575-01-001: Foundation of English Language Teaching Dated Entry Examinations

The dated entry multiple choice examination paper is held four times a year. Once you have decided which date you wish to run your exam you must complete Candidate Dated Entry Form (Form S, appendix 1). In order to ensure the examination papers arrive on time, complete the Dated Entry Form well in advance. Alternatively you can enter candidates for the test using the Walled Garden.

8575-01-003: Foundation of English Language Teaching Online Test

The online test can be taken at any time at 48 hours' notice. Entries can be made on the Walled Garden or with Form S as for 8575-01-001.

Working with the External Verifier

Prior to running ACE, you must contact the External Verifier and notify him/her of your plans. The External Verifier should be sent:

- prospectus of your centre
- details of staff involved in the course (application forms from your Approval submission will be ideal).
- course dates and list of candidates
- proposed dates for visit to your centre by the External Verifier and an agenda to include adequate time for:
 - scrutiny of portfolios
 - meeting staff involved in the programme
 - meeting candidates
 - observation of selected candidates' lessons
 - agreeing of final grades.

4 Course delivery

Method of delivery

This programme may be offered on either a) a part-time basis or b) a full-time basis.

There are different methods of course delivery. These vary from 4-6 weeks intensive courses to part-time courses lasting up to one year. Design your timetable to suit your centre's needs and note that timetables are to be submitted to City & Guilds for approval.

8575-01-001/8575-01-003: Foundations of English Language Teaching

In order to complete this programme, the following resources are recommended:

- copies of the book 'How to teach English' by Jeremy Harmer (Longman: ISBN 0-562-29796-6)
- the Foundations of English Language Teaching (FELT) support materials, based on Harmer's
- book, which are sent on registration
- access to an adequate English language teaching library eg the British Council.

Candidates need a minimum of 100 hours for this programme. The estimated time includes input sessions, tutorials, assignments and time spent on the support materials.

8575-01-002: Supervised Teaching Practice

In order to complete this programme, the following resources are recommended:

- copies of 'Teaching Practice Handbook' by Gower, Philips and Walters (Heinemann: ISBN 0435-24059-5)
- access to at least two classes, each at a different level of English, for a minimum of 10 hours for the purpose of teaching practice (TP). This time includes 4 lessons of assessed TP. The recommended lesson time for assessment purposes is at least 40 minutes
- access to lessons in order to observe teaching practice. A candidate must observe and report
 on at least 4 lessons given by other teachers at the centre. If this is not possible, candidates
 may observe their peer group or appropriate videos eg the Assessor Training Video and report
 on these.

Candidates need a minimum of 50 hours for this programme. The recommended 10 hours for TP is a minimum. The time includes the observed lessons, TP, planning time for and feedback on lessons.

5 Guide to assessment

The assessment consists of two programmes of learning:

1. Foundations of English Language Teaching:

Either 8575-01-001 paper based test or 8575-01-003 online test

2. Supervised Teaching Practice 8575-01-002

In order to receive the full ACE award, candidates must be successful in both programmes. However, candidates will receive a Certificate of Unit Credit for each programme successfully completed. A candidate who passes one programme but fails the other may re-take the programme in which they were unsuccessful. They will be entitled to a full ACE certificate if they succeed in both programmes within a two-year time span.

8575-01-001: Foundations of English Language Teaching (paper based test)

This programme is assessed by an examination paper of 1 hour's duration consisting of 40 multiple choice questions. A candidate will have to attain a pass mark of 65% in order to be successful in this exam. The test questions are based on the Foundations of English Language Teaching support materials (11 units). At present this examination is available on set dates four times a year.

8575-01-003: Foundations of English Language Teaching (online test)

As an alternative to the paper based test candidates may sit the assessment for Foundations of English Language Teaching online. The online assessment covers the same syllabus as the paper based test and has the same number of questions, duration and pass mark. The online test is available at any time at 48 hours' notice. Results are available immediately and candidates can re--sit the test at any time subject to an additional entry fee.

8575-01-002: Supervised Teaching Practice

This programme is assessed by the course tutor and moderated by the Visiting Verifier. The assessment is based on i) candidate's teaching practice and ii) candidate's portfolio. Candidates must be successful in both sections of this programme in order to apply for certification. They must achieve a minimum of a C grade in each of these sections. Candidates, who fail the teaching practice section of this programme and wish to resit the exam need only repeat the sections of the candidate portfolio referring to 'live teaching'.

Teaching practice assessment

In practice, each candidate will undertake between 10 and 20 lessons (of at least 40 minutes' duration) of teaching practice (TP) which must be observed by experienced teachers or trainers who give feedback on his or her performance. However, assessors (course tutors) are required to formally assess each candidate for at least 4 of these lessons. Assessors must use the criteria for marking TP (section 10) and give candidates written feedback and grades for each lesson. In order to be successful, candidates must average a C grade for the 4 assessed lessons. The Visiting Verifier should co-assess a sample of these lessons.

Portfolio assessment

During the course of the programme each candidate will produce a portfolio of evidence that will be graded by the course tutor using the criteria for portfolio assessment (see section 11). The portfolio must be completed by the end of the course. The portfolio must include the following elements:

Lesson plans (at least 4) – including reflections on the lessons, produced at regular intervals during the candidate's TP. There should normally be at least 4 lesson plans.

Observed TP sheets – 4 formal observations of a candidate's teaching practice by the course tutor.

Teaching observation sheets (at least 4) – the observation sheet candidates complete when observing lessons given by other teachers during their TP. These sheets parallel the construction for the sheets used for lesson planning and also the criteria used by the assessor during the assessed lessons. This has been done to make reflection on the lesson easier.

Teaching journal – Candidates should keep a diary or a journal to cover each day they teach. The entries should cover both professional (eg lesson planning) and personal (eg anxieties and triumphs) matters.

Assignment 1: Materials evaluation – Candidates should include an evaluation of at least one of the textbooks or other forms of teaching materials they have used regularly.

Assignment 2: Profile of a student – Candidates to interview one of their students and tape the interview to identify language learning difficulties and recommend future lessons.

Assignment 3: An evaluation of the teaching practice experience including a self-evaluation. The above material must be put in a folder or ring file and include the following sections:

- table of contents
- an introduction describing the school/institution
- a section describing English teaching at the school/institution
- a section describing the class(es) candidates have taught during TP.

The verification process

The main course tutor should act as an Internal Verifier for all assessments. He or she should moderate the grades awarded by other assessors at the centre, by sampling a selection of the assignments graded by them and by sitting in on some of the observed teaching practice sessions. The main course tutor should act as the point of contact with the External Verifier and with City & Guilds for all matters to do with assessment and verification.

Towards the end of the programme the External Verifier will visit the centre on agreed dates to meet staff and candidates and carry out the verification process. Ideally this visit should take place on the last day on which candidates are being observed and graded during Teaching Practice. The External Verifier should:

- sit in on some observed and graded Teaching Practice lessons and review the grades subsequently awarded by the course tutor
- review a selection of candidates' graded portfolios.

As far as possible the course tutors and the External Verifier should agree a final grade for each candidate in the Supervised Teaching Practice programme at this time.

City & Guilds reserve the right to sample candidates' portfolio work, to observe teaching practice sessions and to be present at the written examination.

6 Certification

Once the assessment is completed you must carry out the following process in order to receive certification for your candidates.

8575-01-001: Foundations of English Language Teaching (paper based test)

When candidates have completed the examination, send all examination materials to City & Guilds. Candidates who are successful will receive a Certificate of Unit Credit. Candidates who are not successful and wish to re-sit the examination must be entered for the next dated entry examination quoting their enrolment numbers (S form, appendix 1).

8575-01-003 (online test)

On completion of the online test candidates receive a provisional notification of results. After 72 hours this is confirmed and a Certificate of Unit Credit is issued.

8575-01-002: Supervised Teaching Practice

When candidates have completed their portfolio and teaching practice, send in the Results Submission Form (Form S, appendix 1) with details of successful candidates only. Candidates will receive a Certificate of Unit Credit.

Candidates who are successful in both Foundations of English Language Teaching (paper based or Online test) and Supervised Teaching Practice within a two year period will receive a full ACE certificate.

7 Role of the External verifier

To ensure the reliability, credibility and validity of this award, City & Guilds appoints an External Verifier to monitor the standards of assessments being carried out by the staff.

External Verifiers are required to satisfy themselves that the resources at each centre enable candidates to experience all aspects of the syllabus and that the teachers delivering the syllabus are the teachers listed in the application for approval.

The centre is responsible for moderating the assessment of i) candidates' portfolios and ii) candidates' teaching practice. The External Verifier is responsible for verifying that the assessments carried out by the centre and the results obtained are in accordance with the standards required for this award.

It is not possible for the External Verifier to monitor every assessment that takes place but he/she should scrutinise sufficient candidates' portfolios either prior to visiting the centre or during the visit to verify the centre's ability to assess to the specified standards. The External Verifier may request that particular candidates are present during his/her visit, may interview candidates and/ or arrange to observe candidates' teaching.

Candidate Results Submission Form

The External Verifier will discuss the grades with the assessor (course tutor) and they must come to a final decision on an overall result (ie pass or fail) for programme 002: Supervised Teaching Practice. Centres must enter the results of successful candidates on Form S (appendix 1), which the External Verifier is required to countersign, and send the form to us at City & Guilds. For each course, the External Verifier will be required to visit the centre during the last few weeks in order to carry out their role.

8 Syllabus: 8575-01-001/8575-01-003: Foundations of **English Language Teaching**

8575-01-001/8575-01-003: Foundations of English Language Teaching

Introduction

This programme of learning consists of the following 11 units covering an introduction to the practice of English language teaching.

Aim

The aim of this programme is to develop an initial understanding of the practical features of English language teaching. The programme also makes suggestions about how English can be taught in the most effective way. In particular it focuses on the following areas:

- ideas on what makes a good teacher and a good learner
- an introduction to language systems and how they can be taught
- how to teach receptive and productive skills
- effective classroom management
- suggested teaching models applied to lesson planning
- resources available to teachers and learners
- appropriate teaching techniques.

Syllabus objectives

In order to achieve the following syllabus objectives, candidates should study 'How to teach English' (Harmer: ISBN0-562-29796-6) and also the related support materials (units 0-10).

- O Learning and teaching: how to be a successful teacher; how to be a successful learner
- 1 Choices in the classroom: how to manage teaching and learning
- 2 Learning about the language: descriptions of language systems for the learner and the teacher
- 3 Teaching the language systems: from understanding to practice
- 4 Teaching receptive skills: reading and listening
- 5 Teaching productive skills: speaking
- 6 Teaching productive skills: writing
- 7 Learning styles and learner training
- 8 Planning effective learning: teaching models and lesson planning
- 9 Resources available to the teacher
- 10 Teaching versus testing

Assessment

Foundations of English Language Teaching is assessed by a multiple choice exam consisting of 40 questions.

The following table shows the learning objective that are covered in the eleven units of Foundations of English Language Teaching and the number of test items relating to each unit.

FELT Unit	Learning Objectives	No of items
O Learning and Teaching: how to be a successful teacher, how to be a successful learner	Issues about teaching Issues about learning Teaching different levels	3
1 Choices in the classroom: how to manage teaching and learning	Class management Seating arrangements Student groupings	3
2 Learning about the language: descriptions of language systems for the learner and the teacher	Sentence construction and parts of speech Nouns and pronouns Verbs Adjectives and adverbs Prepositions, articles, conjunctions, conditionals Forms and meanings Phonology Discourse	8
3 Teaching the language systems: from understanding to practice	Studying language Correcting students	2
4 Teaching receptive skills: reading and listening	Reading Reading skills Principles of teaching reading Reading sequences Listening skills Listening activities	6
5 Teaching productive skills: speaking	Speaking skills The teacher's role in speaking skills development Speaking activities	3
6 Teaching productive skills: writing	Writing Correcting writing Writing activities	3
7 Learner styles and learning training	Learning styles Learner training	2
8 Planning effective learning: teaching models and lesson planning	Lesson sequences Teaching models Lesson plans Planning a sequence of lessons Assessing needs	5
9 Resources available to the learner	Text-based resources Audio-visual resources Human resources	4
10 Teaching versus testing	Evaluation of learners' performance	1

Syllabus: 8575-01-002: Supervised Teaching Practice

Introduction

This programme of learning 10 units covers the principal issues in teaching practice.

Aim

The aim of this programme is to develop the practical skills of English language teaching. It focuses on the following:

- classroom management and procedures
- techniques and methods
- personal qualities
- assessment and monitoring
- use of language.

Syllabus objectives

It is recommended that candidates use the 'Teaching Practice Handbook' (Gower, Philips and Walters: ISBN 0-435-24059-5) as their guide to this programme.

- 2.1 Demonstrate effective classroom management
- 2.2 Demonstrate effective lesson planning
- 2.3 Utilise a wide variety of classroom techniques
- 2.4 Demonstrate ability to develop teaching materials
- Display good student rapport 2.5
- 2.6 Demonstrate ability to work as a team
- 2.7 Assess and monitor learners' achievements
- 2.8 Provide feedback appropriately
- 2.9 Analyse language for teaching purposes
- 2.10 Provide an accurate language model

Assessment

The assessment for Supervised teaching practice consists of two sections: i) candidate's teaching practice and ii) candidate's portfolio.

In order to be successful candidates must achieve a minimum of a C grade for each of these sections.

Teaching practice

Assessors are required to assess candidates teaching 4 lessons (minimum duration of 40 minutes each). Ideally candidates should have a minimum class of 6 students, and the lessons should cover more than one level. At least two lessons should have a language focus (eg grammar, vocabulary or function) and two lessons should have a skills focus (eg speaking, reading). Using the criteria for marking teaching practice lessons, the assessor should give a candidate written feedback for each lesson.

Portfolios

In order to be successful candidates must average a C grade for the portfolio.

The portfolio should include the following elements:

- lesson plans (at least 4)
- observed TP sheets (at least 4)
- Teaching Practice observation sheets (at least 4)
- teaching journal/diary
- materials evaluation
- profile of a student
- evaluation of the TP experience including a self evaluation.

These elements must be put in a folder or ring file and include the following sections:

- table of contents
- an introduction describing the school/institution
- a section describing English teaching at the school/institution
- a section describing the class(es) you teach.

10 Criteria for marking Teaching Practice lessons

Criterion	Grade A	Grade B	Grade C	Grade D
	Very good with several outstanding features	Good, with no significant weaknesses	Adequate but requires significant improvement in some areas	Fail – poor quality
Management & procedures	Displays very good qualities of classroom management and control; lesson preparation full and complete at all times.	Displays good qualities of classroom management and control at most times; lesson preparation sound and complete at most times.	Displays adequate qualities of classroom management and control at most times; lesson preparation acceptable at most times.	Displays inadequate qualities of classroom management and control for much of the time; lesson preparation frequently inadequate.
Techniques & methods	Shows an ability to work with a wide variety of appropriate classroom techniques effectively; demonstrates creativity in the development of teaching materials and techniques.	Shows an ability to work with various appropriate classroom techniques effectively; demonstrates some originality or imagination in the development or adaptation of teaching materials and techniques.	Shows an ability to work with a range of appropriate classroom techniques to some effect; teaching materials and techniques mostly taken from published sources, with little creativity or imagination.	Shows an ability to work with only a narrow range of appropriate classroom techniques, and these may lack effect; teaching materials and techniques mostly taken from published sources, and these may not be applied effectively.
Personal qualities	Displays an unusually good rapport with classes; an outstanding ability to work with other teachers and/or peers, either individually or as a member of a team.	Displays a good rapport with classes at most times; good ability to work with other teachers and/or peers, either individually or as a member of a team.	Displays a fair rapport with classes at most times; some ability to work with other teachers and/or peers, either individually or as a member of a team.	Displays little rapport with classes for much of the time; little ability to work with other teachers and/or peers, either individually or as a member of a team.
Assessment & monitoring	Assesses and monitors the achievements of learners especially effectively; provides diagnostic feedback relevant to learners' progress, and incorporates this information into subsequent lesson planning.	Assesses and monitors the achievements of learners well; provides diagnostic feedback relevant to learners' progress, and usually incorporates this information into subsequent lesson planning.	Assesses and monitors the achievements of learners, but may display inconsistencies or inaccuracies of judgement; provides some diagnostic feedback relevant to learners' progress, and sometimes incorporates this information into subsequent lesson planning.	Displays frequent inconsistencies or inaccuracies of judgement when assessing or monitoring the achievements of learners; provides little diagnostic feedback relevant to learners' progress, and rarely incorporates such information into subsequent lesson planning.
Use of language	Displays an excellent command and analysis of language for the purposes of teaching and class management.	Displays a good command and analysis of language for the purposes of teaching and class management.	Displays an adequate command and analysis of language for the purposes of teaching and class management.	Displays a poor command and analysis of language for the purposes of teaching and class management.

11 Criteria for marking portfolios

Portfolio element	Grade A	Grade B	Grade C	Grade D
	Very good with several outstanding features	Good, with no significant weaknesses	Adequate but requires significant improvement in some areas	Fail – poor quality
Assignment 1: Materials evaluation	Well organised Required length Few language errors Appropriate academic style Detailed evidence of: • a knowledge of local materials • an understanding of different approaches • evaluation of material in terms of the local context • understanding of how syllabuses are designed • understanding of balance of skills and language study	Well organised Required length Some language errors Appropriate academic style Evidence of: • a knowledge of local materials • an understanding of different approaches • evaluation of material in terms of the local context	Well organised Required length A number of language errors Some lapses in appropriate academic style Incomplete evidence of: • a knowledge of local materials • an understanding of different approaches • evaluation of material in terms of the local context	Serious weaknesses in presentation Style often inappropriate Very many errors Fails to meet most or all of the objectives of this assignment
Assignment 2: Profile of a student	Well organised Required length Few language errors Appropriate academic style Detailed evidence of understanding of: • different learning styles • motivation • language needs Account taken of: • educational background • student's language learning context	Well organised Required length Some language errors Appropriate academic style Evidence of understanding of: • different learning styles • motivation • language needs Account taken of: • educational background • student's language learning context	Well organised Required length A number of language errors Some lapses in appropriate academic style Evidence of understanding of a minimum of at least two of the following: • different learning styles • motivation • language needs Account taken of at least one of the following: • educational background • student's language learning context	Serious weaknesses in presentation Style often inappropriate Very many errors Fails to meet most or all of the objectives of this assignment

ACE (8575) qualification handbook

11 Criteria for marking portfolios (continued)

Portfolio element	Grade A	Grade B	Grade C	Grade D
	Very good with several outstanding features	Good, with no significant weaknesses	Adequate but requires significant improvement in some areas	Fail – poor quality
Assignment 3: Evaluation of teaching practice	Evidence of ability to apply ELT theory to practice Understanding of ELT concepts and terminology Ability to evaluate lesson preparation Ability to critically evaluate execution of lessons identifying strengths and weaknesses in: • class management • language teaching • skills teaching Ability to take account of own/tutors'/colleagues'/mentors' evaluation in execution of future lessons	Evidence of ability to apply ELT theory to practice Understanding of main ELT concepts and terminology Ability to evaluate execution of lessons or parts of lessons identifying strengths and weaknesses Ability to take account of own/tutors'/colleagues'/mentors' evaluation in execution of future lessons	Evidence of ability to apply ELT theory to practice Partial understanding of main ELT concepts and terminology Ability to evaluate execution of parts of lessons Ability to take account of own/tutors'/colleagues'/mentors' evaluation in execution of future lessons	Fails to meet most or all of the objectives of this assignment
Observation of classes taught by qualified teachers (minimum 4)	Evidence of: identification and understanding of lesson aims and rationale of stages identification of a wide range of successful activities identification of a number of successful class management techniques use of observed techniques in own lessons	Evidence of: identification of lesson aims and rationale of stages identification of a range of successful activities identification of some successful class management techniques Use of some observed techniques in own lessons	Evidence of: identification of lesson aims and rationale of stages though not always accurate identification of a few successful activities identification of a few class management techniques Use of a few observed techniques in own lessons	Fails to meet most or all of the objectives of this report

11 Criteria for marking portfolios (continued)

Portfolio element	Grade A	Grade B	Grade C	Grade D
	Very good with several outstanding features	Good, with no significant weaknesses	Adequate but requires significant improvement in some areas	Fail – poor quality
Lesson plans for all lessons taught	Ability to plan effectively for different lesson types: skills v language lessons Ability to plan stages with a clear understanding of the rationale for each stage Ability to time stages appropriately Ability to group students appropriately for tasks Ability to thoroughly research language points Ability to anticipate and plan effectively for difficulties Ability to adapt or design materials	Ability to plan for different lesson types: skills v language lessons Ability to plan most stages with some understanding of the rationale for each stage Ability to time most stages effectively Ability to group students appropriately for tasks most of the time Ability to research language points adequately Ability to anticipate and plan for difficulties	Ability to plan for different lesson types: skills v language lessons Ability to plan most stages with some understanding of the rationale for each stage – not necessarily consistently Ability to group students appropriately for tasks some of the time Ability to research language points – though not always thoroughly Ability to anticipate and plan for difficulties – though not always effectively	Fails to show evidence of some or all of the following: underlying principles of effective planning in terms of:
Teaching journal/diary covering each day taught	 Evidence of: detailed assessment of strengths and weaknesses how to address weaknesses informed reflection on comments made on TP awareness of factors influencing effective teaching and learning 	Evidence of:	Evidence of:	Little evidence of informed assessment of strengths and weaknesses Little evidence of understanding of comments made on TP Little evidence of understanding the factors influencing effective teaching and learning

ACE (8575) qualification handbook

Appendix 1 Form S

Candidate registration, dated entry and results submission form (sample)

City & Guilds Form S - registration, results and dated entry submission

This form will be scanned. Please use BLOCK CAPITALS. Please send this form to: City & Guilds, Data Processing, 1 Giltspur Street, London ECIA 9DD. If you have any questions about how to fill in this form, please phone Entries and Results Customer Support on 020 7294 2787. Please read the guidance notes over the page before you fill in this form.

	Take Takes Manager		ed .	
Centre number: 7 0 1 2 3 4	Sub Centre name A UPTOWN COLLEGE		Phone number 020 8444 3339	DAVID JONES
Award number	Award title			amber or customer reference
3 0 1 7 0 1	HAIRDRESSING, LEVEL 1		Turing Start In	
Tick one of N	Dated Dated	- 12 14 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15	Block	_
	gistration Results American	Month	registration	Number of registrations needed
Insert enrolment number if	The candidate's name is not necessary when you ha	ave given the	Date Ethnic	Particular Funding Duplicate
known (use BLOCK CAPITALS)	enrolment number. (Please use BLOCK CAPITALS)		Sex of birth code	requirements code to above
E N R	PETIERDBROWNAME		MF 13 10 61 see ore	rieat
1 0 1 P 1 0 2		HINE 2 OF COMPONENT SHE COMPONENT	SIME COMPONENT SIME COMPONENT ST	THAT SHE COMPONENT SHE COMPONENT SHE
A B C 1 2 3 4	ANNDBROWN NAME		MFF 02 02 80 see ore	riea
COMPONENT GREE COMPONENT G	BE COMPONENT GIVE COMPONENT GIVE COMPONENT GIVE COM	PONENT SINCE COMPONENT SINCE COMPONENT		OMPONENT GREE COMPONENT GREE COMPONENT GREE
D E F 5 6 7 8	JAMESDGREENAME		M 03 03 75	fleaf
1 0 3 P 1 0 5	COMPONENT GIVE COMPONENT GIVE COMPONENT GIVE COM	PONENT SINCE COMPONENT SINCE COMPONENT		DMPCHENT GIME COMPONENT GIME COMPONENT GIME
ENR	CANDIDATE NAME		M/F D MY YY see ove	rleaf
COMPONENT THE COMPONENT OF	RE COMPONENT GIVE COMPONENT GIVE COMPONENT GIVE COM	POWENT GIME COMPONENT GOMPONENT	OME COMPONENT OME ON	MAPONENT GIKE COMPONENT GIKE COMPONENT GIKE
ENR	CANDIDATE NAME		M/F DD MM YY see of a	rieaf
COMPONENT GNOE COMPONENT OF	RE COMPONENT GIVE COMPONENT GIVE COMPONENT GIVE COM		NUMBER COMPONENT BRASE COMPONENT BRASE OX	OMPONENT GWE COMPONENT GWE COMPONENT GWE
ENR	CANDIDATE NAME	REPORT OF THE PARTY OF THE PART	M/F DD MM YY see ove	rieaf
сомронент вив сомронент в	E COMPONENT GIVE COMPONENT GIVE COMPONENT GIVE TON	CONFORM	THE COMPONENT HIME COMPONENT HIME CO	SMPCHENT SHEE COMPONENT SHEE COMPONENT SHEE
ENB	CANDIDATE NAC	W. W. T.	M/F DD MM YY see ove	rieal
COMPONENT GIVE COMPONENT G	COMPONENT SME COMPONENT SME CHIPONEY OF CIM	ом о вые сомронент яние сомронент	GIVE COMPONENT GIVE COMPONENT GIVE	OMPONENT GIVE COMPONENT GIVE COMPONENT GIVE
ENB	CIANDI IDIAITEI WARE) 	M/F DD MM YY see ore	rieat
COMPONENT GROSS COMPONENT U	EL COMPONENT GARE APPONENT GARE COM	PONENT BURE COMPONENT BURE COMPONENT	GINE COMPONENT GINE COMPONENT GRAZE CO	OMPONENT BUE COMPONENT BUE COMPONENT GREE
ENB	CIAIN DIAME		M/F DD MM YY see ove	Pleaf
COMPONENT GIVE COMPONENT IS	III COMPONE SAME COMPONENT ONE COM	POWENT SINCE COMPONENT SINCE COMPONENT	GIME COMPONENT SHIP COMPONENT SHIP OF	SMPONENT SINE COMPONENT SINE COMPONENT SWE
ENB			M/F DD MM YY see ove	rical
COMPONENT SWILL COMPONENT S	COMPONENT AND COMPONENT SHAE COMPONENT SHAE COMP	PONENT SWEET COMPONENT INVESTIGATION	SIME COMPONENT SIME COMPONENT SIME CO	OMPONENT GIME COMPONENT GIME COMPONENT GIME
I confirm that the candidat	es above are entered in line with City & Guilds r	egulations.		
Variation Top	1 n 1	f 1 Date 11 / 8 / 02	Country signature (if page 1-15)	
Sond the ten convict.	& Guilds. Keep the second copy for your own i	Date:	Counter signature (if needed)	
send the top copy to City	x Guilds. Reep the second copy for your own i	records.		ST74937 F-00030565 04/02 Version 2

Appendix 2 Suggested lesson planning sheet

Ace Trainee	Date	Time
No. of students D	uration of class	
Level		
Lesson aim(s)		
Personal aim(s)		
Context for language learning		

Self Evaluation
What I learnt from this lesson:
Management & procedures
Techniques & methods
Personal qualities
Assessment & monitoring
Use of language
Aim(s) for next lesson
Signature of mentor/observer Signature of trainee

Procedure	Procedure				
Time/interaction	Stage/rationale of lesson	Students' activities	Teacher's activities	Materials& aids	

Appendix 3 Suggested observed TP sheets

ACE Trainee			Date	Time
Lesson aim(s)				
Context for la	nguage learning			
Feedback to	trainee			
 Managem 	ent & procedures	i		
• Technique	es & methods			
• Personal (
- Accoccmo				
• Assessine	til & monitoring			
Use of lan	סוואספ			
030 31 12				
Overall comm	ent			
 Signature of te	eacher observing		Signature o	of trainee
	,			
Stage	Comments			

Appendix 4 Suggested teaching observation report

Teacher	Date	Time
No. of students	Duration of class	
Level		
Lesson aim(s)		
Context for language learning		

What can be learned from this lesson:
Management & procedures
Techniques & methods
Personal qualities
Assessment & monitoring
Use of language
Overall comment
Things I'd like to try myself
Signature of teacher observed

Procedure					
Time/interaction	Students' activities	Teachers' activities	Materials & aids		

Appendix 5 Assignments

Candidates are required to submit three assignments for inclusion in their portfolio:

- 1. Materials evaluation
- 2. Profile of a student
- 3. Evaluation of teaching practice

There are many ways of guiding candidates in these areas. The following pages contain suggested outlines to support students in producing these assignments.

Candidates can resubmit an assignment to their tutor (to be marked before the verifier's visit) if any of the following are not satisfactory:

- The assignment should be complete and should address all the issues given
- The assignment should be of the specified length
- The assignment should meet the standards of spelling, style and presentation appropriate for a teacher of English.

Assignment 1 - Materials evaluation

- i. Choose two course books of the same level and select an area of language which both course books cover, eg the second conditional.
- ii. Evaluate how the language is presented and practised, eg which model is used, task based, presentation, practice production (PPP), teacher talking time (TTT)? Does the material cover the concept, the form and the pronunciation? Is the practice meaningful, interesting to students, communicative? Is there oral and written practice ranging from controlled to relatively free?
- iii. Which would you prefer to use? Give reasons for your choice. How would you adapt or supplement the material for your students?
- iv. Use your chosen material and teach it to your students. Comment on your lesson in terms of the material.

Write approximately 500-750 words.

Assignment 2 – Profile of a student

- i. Choose one of your TP students, making sure you have chosen someone that your colleagues have not. If possible observe your student in class. Ask the student to produce some writing for you (for example, you describe an event from your life – your worst journey - then ask the student to write about an awful journey).
- Obtain a sample of spoken English from your student. Plan the questions you will ask. ii. Include your questions in your assignment. Arrange a place and a time for an interview. If possible tape the interview.
- Write up your findings under the following headings: iii.
 - previous language learning experience
 - reasons for learning English
 - preferred learning style
 - strengths and weaknesses in English: grammar, vocabulary, pronunciation and communicative ability
- Make recommendations for helping your student with one of the weak areas. iv.

Write approximately 500-750 words.

Assignment 3 – Evaluation of Teaching Practice

Part 1

Go back over the feedback you received from your observed lessons and your teaching journal. Critically reflect on your own teaching and under each of the criteria given below, list two aspects of teaching you feel comfortable with and one aspect you feel you need to work on. See section 10 for fuller descriptions of the criteria.

- Management and procedures
- Techniques and methods
- Personal qualities
- Assessment and monitoring
- Use of language

Example:

Management and procedures

Strengths

I can give instructions.

My board work is planned effectively and helps students.

Weaknesses

I need to work on how to pace a lesson. Het some stages go on too long and students lose interest.

Part 2

- a) Look back through your notes on lessons you have observed. Without naming the teacher, describe briefly the different stages of a particularly effective lesson. Comment on why you thought it worked well.
- b) You will have observed other teachers using ideas that you would like to incorporate in your own lessons.
 - i. Describe an example of these ideas under each of the following categories:
 - Management and procedures
 - Techniques and methods
 - Personal qualities
 - Assessment and monitoring
 - Use of language
 - ii. Explain how each idea is effective

Example:

Assessment and monitoring

I observed that during a reading task, the teacher stood at the front of the class after she had given students a gist task which needed to be done quickly and then moved quietly round near students after they had been given more detailed comprehension questions. As she moved round, she didn't interrupt students but some stopped her and asked her questions.

This meant they weren't tempted to ask questions during the gist task but they felt able to do so for the most detailed reading. This is one way of encouraging skimming and training students not to stop at every word they don't know for gist reading. By moving close to students, they felt confident to ask individual questions which gave support for the more intensive reading tasks.

Write approximately 250 words for Part 1 and 500 words for Part 2.

Appendix 6 **Assessor standardisation form**

Name:	. Role: Teacher trainer/Visiting Verifier
Address:	

Rating	Α	В	С	D
	Very good	Good	Adequate	Poor quality
Criterion	With several outstanding features	With no significant weaknesses	But requires significant improvement in some areas	Requiring significant improvement in many areas
Management & procedures				
Techniques & methods				
Personal qualities				
Assessment & Monitoring				
Use of language				
Totals:				

Overall rating for full lesson Aggregate: Rating:

Your completed form should be returned to: City & Guilds, 1 Giltspur Street, London EC1A 9DD This page is intentionally blank

Published by City & Guilds 1 Giltspur Street London EC1A 9DD T +44 (0)20 7294 2800 F +44 (0)20 7294 2400 www.cityandguilds.com

City & Guilds is a registered charity established to promote education and training